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1          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Good evening.  My name is
2 Randolf Meiklejohn.  I'm a member of the Brookline
3 Zoning Board of Appeals, and I'm the Chair of this
4 evening's meeting.  Before we begin, I will confirm
5 that all members and other persons anticipated to
6 participate on the agenda are present and can hear
7 me.
8          Members, when I call your name, please
9 respond in the affirmative.
10          Lark Palermo?
11          MS. PALERMO:  I am here.
12          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And Neil Wishinsky?
13          MR. WISHINSKY:  Good evening.
14          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Staff, when I call your
15 name, please respond in the affirmative.
16          Maria Morelli?
17          MS. MORELLI:  Present.
18          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And Maria, you're the only
19 staff person on tonight; is that right?
20          MS. MORELLI:  Correct.
21          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Okay.  All right.  Thanks.
22          This meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals
23 in open session is being conducted remotely and in a
24 manner that is consistent with the legislature's
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1 extension of provisions initially made under
2 Governor Baker's March 12, 2020, executive order
3 concerning the now expired state of emergency in the
4 Commonwealth due to the outbreak of COVID-19.
5          This body is authorized to meet entirely
6 remotely so long as public -- so long as adequate
7 public access is provided.  Adequate public access
8 does not include public participation unless such
9 participation is required by law.  This meeting may
10 feature public comment.
11          For this meeting, the ZBA is convening by
12 video conference via Zoom as posted on the town's
13 calendar which identifies how the public may access
14 the meeting.
15          Be advised that this meeting is being held
16 and that some attendees may be participating by
17 video conference.  Accordingly, please be aware that
18 others may be able to see you, and take care not to
19 screen share your computer.  Anything that you
20 broadcast may be captured by the recording.
21          All supporting materials that have been
22 provided to members of this body are available on
23 the town website and attached to the invitation for
24 this meeting.  The meeting will follow the agenda
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1 unless I note otherwise.
2          Next, let me cover some ground rules that
3 will permit clear and effective conduct of our
4 business and help to ensure accurate meeting
5 minutes.
6          I will introduce each speaker on the
7 agenda.  After they conclude their remarks, I will
8 invite each member by name to provide any comment,
9 questions or motions.  Please hold yours until your
10 name is called.
11          Please also remember to mute your phone or
12 computer when you are not speaking and to speak
13 clearly and in a way that helps generate accurate
14 minutes.  Before responding, please wait until the
15 floor is yielded to you and state your name before
16 speaking.  If members wish to engage in sidebar
17 conversation with other members, please do so
18 through me.
19          Finally, each vote taken in this meeting
20 will be conducted by roll call.  Finally, I'll
21 explain how members of the public may speak in this
22 meeting.
23          If you wish to speak, please send a message
24 to our meeting host, Maria, using the chat section
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1 of the Zoom.  You can find the chat icon at the
2 bottom of the screen.  Click on it and when the chat
3 window opens on the right, enter your name.
4          Maria will cue queue speakers in the order
5 their requests are received, and she will also ask
6 you if you would like to speak in favor of or in
7 opposition to the project.  When it is your turn to
8 speak, I will call on you by name only.  Please
9 begin your remarks by stating your name and address.
10          Just briefly for this meeting's agenda --
11 and I'm going to hand it over to Maria in a
12 minute -- what we have before us is a request to
13 modify a comprehensive permit issued under Chapter
14 40B of the general laws granted in 2017 to construct
15 a six-story residential building at 40 Centre Street
16 with 40 units; 20 of them affordable and 25
17 vehicular parking spaces with stackers.
18          The request is to modify the vehicular
19 parking in the project, and Maria and the applicant
20 will speak about this in more detail.  This is a
21 substantial change as voted by this board in August
22 2022.
23          As we begin, I will emphasize that the
24 focus of this hearing will be the proposed parking
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1 modification and not other aspects of the project
2 unrelated to this proposed change.
3          After Maria's introduction of the project
4 history, the proposed changes and the related
5 regulatory and procedural details, we will hear from
6 the applicants -- I believe they have a
7 presentation -- and board members may ask questions
8 of the applicant.
9          We will then have public comment.  Members
10 can use the chat as I've just described to request
11 to speak.  I may invite the applicant to respond to
12 comments made by members of the public.
13          Members of the board may ask additional
14 questions and deliberate and when we believe we've
15 heard sufficient testimony, we may close the
16 hearing.
17          Maria, would you like to take it from there
18 with your staff report?
19          MS. MORELLI:  Sure.  Thank you very much,
20 Randolf.
21          My name is Maria Morelli.  I'm a senior
22 planner in the Town of Brookline planning
23 department.  I just want to note we have about 31
24 attendees and again, this is for the proposed
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1 modification for the comprehensive permit for 40
2 Centre Street.  That is the first case on the
3 agenda.  And there is a second case which many
4 members of the public might be here for and that is
5 for 845 Boylston.
6          Just a little bit of background.  In
7 February 2017, the Board of Appeals approved with
8 conditions a comprehensive permit for this project
9 for six stories, 40 units, 20 percent affordable and
10 25 parking spaces with stackers.  In 2017, the ZBA
11 decision was appealed by the abutters.
12          In August 2020, the Preservation Commission
13 issued an extension for the demolition permit to two
14 years beyond the end of litigation.  In 2022, the
15 appellate court sustained the judgment of the trial
16 court in favor of the developer.
17          The neighbors filed an application for
18 further appellate review with the supreme judicial
19 court, and then in September -- September 13, 2022,
20 assistant town counsel, Jonathan Simpson, confirmed
21 that the SJC denied the 40 Centre Street neighbor's
22 application for further appellate review.
23          This past summer, the applicant did notify
24 the Board of Appeals of a proposed project change to
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1 reduce the number of parking spaces from 25 with
2 stackers to 16 spaces without stackers.  The number
3 of units would remain at 40.
4          And then in August 2022, the board did vote
5 that that proposed change was substantial and,
6 therefore, a hearing was opened.  We did receive
7 permission from the applicant to open the hearing
8 beyond the 30-day extension.
9          It was opened on October 24, 2022, and then
10 because of a series of conflicts with members of
11 the -- board members, it was continued to November
12 9th and then continued once again without testimony
13 to this evening, November 14th.
14          So with that, I will turn it over to the
15 applicant to give his presentation.  If the board
16 has any questions about staff's review of this
17 proposal and any increased impacts, we can go over
18 findings and any questions you may have after the
19 applicant's presentation.
20          Okay.  Mr. Roth.
21          MR. WISHINSKY:  You're muted, Mr. Roth.
22          MR. ROTH:  Oh, okay.
23          MR. WISHINSKY:  There you go.
24          MR. ROTH:  All right.  Thank you.
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1          As Maria outlined in her presentation, this
2 project has had a long history of appeals and
3 litigation that cover almost six or seven years.
4 Fortunately, we prevailed and during this time of
5 litigation and over the seven years, there's been
6 many, many modifications to the Brookline parking
7 situation that was outlined over the years.
8          In 2016, the transit parking overlay
9 district was established and then in 2021, Article
10 18 was passed and again in 2021, Article 23 was
11 passed.  These articles, or the intent of these
12 articles, were to reduce or give the board the
13 ability to reduce parking in the transit district
14 and the ability for the board to reduce and
15 eliminate actually as many parking spots they felt
16 which would be right or proper for the project.
17          As you see, these efforts were done for
18 many reasons; one, for greenhouse emissions, fuel --
19 fossil-free fuel conditions, and in order to
20 encourage the developer to create a smaller carbon
21 footprint.
22          You can see that Brookline was not alone in
23 doing this.  You can see that other towns have now
24 moved towards reducing their parking minimums,
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1 Cambridge/Somerville at the top of the list, and
2 then all across the country.  So we decided now
3 after seven years that this was time to take a look
4 at where Centre Street actually stood.
5          Our efforts were to -- well, the first
6 thing was -- this is a quote that is up on the board
7 here.  People in Brookline do care about climate
8 control and climate change, so we reevaluated our
9 project and with the hope to align 40 Centre Street
10 with the Town of Brookline's vision.
11          And by striking the project's footprint,
12 this was -- now when we did this, we also saw that
13 the adjustments that we were making to the building
14 would also provide a better and safer building, not
15 only for the residents of the building but also for
16 the neighborhood.
17          So the plan here is really to reduce nine
18 stacking units.  The stackers are -- really are
19 taking place on the surface of the parking.  The
20 parking has 16 parking spaces and inside those
21 parking spaces are stacking units.  By eliminating
22 these stacking vehicles, we'll be reducing the
23 parking ratio from .67 to .40.  Not only that, we
24 can now also put in EV chargers to support the
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1 electrical vehicles.
2          So we're planning to put in nine EV
3 charging stations and nine parking spaces to be
4 ready for -- EV ready.  And also it gives us the
5 opportunity to create more bicycle parking spaces,
6 so we're going to double our amount from 22 to 44
7 spaces.
8          In addition to these items, we're going to
9 also create a building that is 100 percent fossil
10 fuel-free and create a solar-ready building.
11          Now, these are the benefits of parking
12 reductions.  The parking reductions is going to
13 reduce the gas emissions from personal vehicles with
14 increased use of easily available public
15 transportation.
16          Now, I'm assuming everyone on the board
17 here knows where this location is.  40 Centre Street
18 is, you know, in the center of Coolidge Corner.  You
19 can see it highlighted in the red square.  It's 500
20 feet from the Green Line, 500 feet from the bus
21 line, 500 feet from the bike station which is on the
22 corner of Centre Street and Beacon Street, and
23 adjacent to the site, there's Zipcars available.
24          You can go back to the other.  So not only
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1 are we going to have a reduction of gas emissions,
2 we're going to reduce traffic congestion, increase
3 bicycle support and support electric cars.  In other
4 words, we're taking this project which was thought
5 about in 2015 -- '14-2015 and we're modernizing it
6 to fit the prototype of the Brookline vision.
7          All right.  We can go to the next one.
8 Well, the next one is the stacking elimination.
9 These stackers -- I don't know if you're familiar
10 with them.  The stackers are heavy equipment that
11 uses lots and lots of power, and we are thinking
12 that by reducing them, we eliminate the use of this
13 power.
14          The building actually is improved by
15 eliminating these stackers.  When you put the
16 stackers in, you need height built into the garage.
17 You need around 12 feet of height in the garage.
18 Now, what we're planning to do, if we can eliminate
19 the stacking machines, is to elevate the garage
20 floor; not elevate the building, just the garage
21 floor.
22          The building height will stay 100 percent
23 the same, but the floor will be raised approximately
24 three to four feet.  Now by doing this, the slope
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1 that comes off Centre Street into the garage is --
2 as you see on this slide is reduced.
3          Right now, it's designed for a -- roughly a
4 10 percent slope, but if we can eliminate the
5 stackers and elevate the floor elevation of the
6 garage, then what we'll have is a slope of
7 approximately four and a half to five percent.  By
8 reducing this slope, it will make it a much more
9 gentle approach into the building and then a gentle
10 approach out of the building.
11          It improves slightly the visibility of
12 potential drivers on Centre Street, bicycle riders
13 and pedestrians.  It just gives them a slightly
14 better vision of the level ground.
15          Also by doing this, it will diminish the
16 excavation around the building which will
17 essentially reduce the potential property damage,
18 and then it also allows us to improve the bicycle
19 and senior residents who are in the building, and
20 they can access the building better and they can
21 exit the building better.  And finally, the stackers
22 do make some noise, and this noise will be
23 completely eliminated.
24          Again, this here is showing all of the
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1 public transportation in the area.  I'm sure all you
2 know exactly where this is.  This here also is a
3 closer shot.  We have the parking lot across the
4 street.  We have a parking lot to the north.
5          We have now -- we have these -- in blue,
6 you see there's 15 parking spaces in the blue that
7 are private that are controlled by the Hamilton
8 Group.  Those 15 spaces are available for anyone to
9 rent.  And then in the corner, you see there's
10 Zipcars available.
11          Here is on the ground.  It actually shows
12 you how close these spaces are to the property.
13 They are available for rent.  If for one reason or
14 another a resident wanted a spot, they could rent a
15 spot here.
16          Here -- we showed you this slide here.  We
17 showed you the entry.  Here you can see the bike
18 path on Centre Street.  It's in green.  And then you
19 see the sidewalk, and all these are just -- you
20 know, by making the slope into the -- from this
21 driveway a lot gentler, it will give -- it will be
22 much easier getting in and getting out.  Here it
23 also shows a side section of the approach into the
24 garage.  You can see how gentle it is.
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1          Now, this building, just to give you an
2 idea, is basically 62 and a half percent of studio
3 and one bedroom apartments.  We know that in this
4 area, most of the people -- 62 percent or more of
5 the people in this area work either at home, ride a
6 bicycle, take public transportation, and
7 approximately 35 percent of the people own cars in
8 the area, in this area.  This is Track 4004.
9          Our plan is to unbundle the parking from
10 the apartment rental, and it will be on a first
11 come/first served basis.  Here's an overview again
12 of the public and private transportation in the area
13 and the availability.
14          These are letters -- I have two letters
15 here.  One is a recent letter from Vanasse
16 Transportation.  They're transportation engineers,
17 and they've done the calculations, and they are in
18 support of a .4 spaces per unit approach to this
19 project.
20          Again, there was another letter actually in
21 2016.  Did you skip over that?  Oh, okay.  The 2016
22 one was also -- they at the time had proposed a .4
23 spaces per unit.  Why don't we go back to the other
24 one.  The requested parking here from 25 to 16
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1 spaces, from .67 to .40, this is consistent with the
2 recent approval of 217 Kent Street where they have
3 100 units and 40 spaces.  That is also a 40B
4 project.
5          Also on 45 Marion Street, there is also a
6 project that has 62 units and 20 spaces or 21 spaces
7 at .32 spaces per unit, also a 40B project.  That
8 project has been built and been operating and it's
9 been a very successful project, so you can see that
10 the parking limitations on that project have not
11 hurt the project's ability to rent units.
12          In summary, this is going to be a fossil
13 fuel-free building.  It's going to increase our
14 bicycle spaces.  It's going to reduce gas emissions.
15 It's going to support electric cars, solar ready.
16 We'll make the building solar ready, and it's going
17 to reduce traffic congestion and at the same time,
18 we're going to be committing to a more -- creating
19 more affordable housing in the project.
20          We're going to increase our affordable
21 component from 20 percent to 25 percent.  This will
22 add two more units to the project as affordable.
23 And as I said, by removing the stackers, we're going
24 to have a safer building design and more accessible.
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1 The excavation will be lowered and less disturbance,
2 and there will be less noise from the stacking units
3 and eventually the traffic will also be reduced.
4          And that's pretty much what we're asking
5 for.  We're asking for a reduction of these nine
6 spaces, and really it's the removal of the stackable
7 units that we're looking to get taken out of the
8 project.
9          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you, Mr. Roth.
10          I'm going to turn to my fellow board
11 members and ask if they have questions on your
12 presentation.
13          Lark, let me start with you.  Do you have
14 questions?
15          MS. PALERMO:  Yes.  Thank you, Randolf.
16          Sort of going in reverse order from the
17 things that you mentioned, Mr. Roth, you're going to
18 be increasing the number of affordable units from 20
19 percent to 25 percent.  Do you also plan to change
20 the income guidelines because you --
21          MR. ROTH:  No.
22          MS. PALERMO:  No.
23          MR. ROTH:  Those are consistent with Mass.
24 Housing, yes.
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1          MS. MORELLI:  Could you clarify the AMI
2 percentage?  I believe that's what is being asked
3 here.
4          MS. PALERMO:  Yes.
5          MR. ROTH:  For me?  You want me to clarify
6 it?  The 20 percent is 50 percent median and then
7 the 25 percent is 80 percent.
8          MS. PALERMO:  So you will be going up to 80
9 percent of AMI?
10          MR. ROTH:  Yeah.
11          MS. PALERMO:  Okay.  Okay.  That's what I
12 wanted to know.  And you've said that you're
13 anticipating you can raise the floor of the garage
14 three to four feet to accomplish this change without
15 impacting the height of the building?
16          MR. ROTH:  That's correct.
17          MS. PALERMO:  And does that mean -- what
18 will then be the height of the garage ceiling at
19 completion?
20          MR. ROTH:  It's approximately eight feet.
21          MS. PALERMO:  So eight feet, okay.
22          MR. ROTH:  I think Jack Wise is on.  He's
23 the construction expert on this.  Jack, is it --
24 let's see if he's here.
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1          MR. WISE:  Yeah, Bob, I think what is most
2 important is the elevation of the second floor which
3 is above the garage is consistent and the same as it
4 was before where all we're doing is lessening the
5 excavation which will do several things in terms of
6 the impact of slope as we excavate and also
7 considerably expedite the construction and reduce
8 the number of trucks that we need to remove various,
9 you know, soils to accomplish the project.
10          MS. PALERMO:  Do you have soils that need
11 special disposal?
12          MR. WISE:  No, there's not.
13          MR. ROTH:  Actually the soils on the site
14 are very favorable.
15          MS. PALERMO:  Okay.  And it's a flat site?
16 It's not sloped?
17          MR. ROTH:  Yeah, it's perfectly flat.
18          MR. WISE:  It's a very flight site.
19          MR. ROTH:  Only inches maybe across the
20 plane.
21          MS. PALERMO:  Okay.
22          MS. MORELLI:  Ms. Palermo, this is Maria
23 speaking.  I'm glad the building section is here.
24 Waiver 8 indicates the actual height of the building
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1 would be 67 feet and four inches.  And as you can
2 see, to be the base of the -- or to the parapet, it
3 would be 66 feet, four inches, so just raising the
4 slope would not increase the height of the building.
5          MS. PALERMO:  Okay.  Excellent.  Thank you.
6          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thanks, Maria.
7          MS. PALERMO:  I don't have any other
8 questions.  Thank you.
9          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  All right.  Thank you,
10 Lark.
11          Neil, questions from you?
12          MR. WISHINSKY:  You said that you're
13 increasing the level of EV coverage charging
14 stations and EV ready.  Are you doing it to a point
15 where you're complying with the most recent changes
16 to the bylaw?
17          MR. ROTH:  I don't know 100 percent.  I
18 think the intent was to comply to the bylaw, but I'm
19 not 100 percent.  Maybe Maria --
20          MS. MORELLI:  Sure, yep.  Thank you.  There
21 are a number of ways to meet the latest version of
22 the bylaw which currently the Attorney General is
23 still reviewing.  She has until January 8th to
24 review what town meeting passed.
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1          There are a number of ways to meet the
2 bylaw that was passed.  One is 100 percent of the
3 parking spaces are EV ready as defined by the state
4 building code, which is to have a 50 amp ramp
5 circuit for each parking space.
6          Another option is to have -- use an
7 automated load management system that would allow
8 there to be a minimum of, you know, a certain KW of
9 power to each parking space if they were all parking
10 or all charging at the same time.  There could also
11 be dual chargers that are used, and there can also
12 be a combination of any of those methods.
13          So what the building commissioner and what
14 the chief electrical inspector will be looking for
15 when plans are submitted for a building permit, they
16 would want to see the calculations, the total load
17 calculations.  They would want to see evidence that
18 the applicant was meeting that bylaw.  So this is
19 something that he would be voluntarily doing.
20          MR. WISHINSKY:  Right.  So as a condition
21 of our approval, we would be saying that it's your
22 intent to meet that bylaw one way or another.  Would
23 we put that in the conditions?
24          MR. ROTH:  This is our intent.
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1          MR. WISHINSKY:  Okay.
2          MR. ROTH:  So until it's solidified, I
3 guess we won't know what it is, but I'm making the
4 effort.
5          MR. WISHINSKY:  Right.  And you're
6 future-proofing the building because that's the way
7 the world is going.
8          MR. ROTH:  Exactly.
9          MR. WISHINSKY:  It seems to me you either
10 do it now or you do it ten years from now, and it's
11 going to be a heck of a lot cheaper if you do it
12 now.
13          Rhetorical -- well, not a rhetorical
14 question.  You're saying that reducing the parking
15 will reduce the number of vehicles and the emissions
16 and traffic, et cetera, but how is it going to do
17 that if all you're doing is displacing the cars next
18 door to the Hamilton site?
19          MR. ROTH:  Well, I don't think the plan is
20 to displace them to the Hamilton property.  I mean,
21 I'm fairly confident that the 16 spaces that we'll
22 have will be sufficient.  I'm just saying that in
23 the event that it isn't for one reason or another,
24 if there's one or two people extra that want to have
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1 an extra car, they would have the availability of
2 having it there.
3          MR. WISHINSKY:  On the slide, it didn't
4 show how the additional units would be apportioned
5 between affordable and market rate.
6          MR. ROTH:  No.  It will be broken out with
7 Mass. Housing.  It will be -- typically they have a
8 ratio.
9          MR. WISHINSKY:  They're not going to get --
10 all the affordable aren't --
11          MR. ROTH:  No, they get -- they have to get
12 a three bedroom unit -- 10 percent of the units have
13 to be three bedrooms.  One of them has to be
14 affordable three bedroom.  There has to be a two
15 bedroom affordable.  There's -- we have a lot of one
16 bedrooms, so actually there will be -- I mean, we do
17 have a breakout of it, but it complies with Mass.
18 Housing.
19          MR. WISHINSKY:  And my last question is
20 back to the parking.  How will the parking -- you
21 said the parking will be apportioned by first
22 come/first served.  How do we ensure that all the
23 parking is just going to go to the market rate and
24 the affordable units won't get any parking?
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1          MR. ROTH:  Well, I don't know.  I don't
2 know how that's done.  I think it's open spacing for
3 anyone who wants a spot.  You know, if the
4 affordable comes in -- if the first few people are
5 affordable and they take an apartment, they indeed
6 could be the first ones reserving all the parking or
7 a good substantial part of it.  So there's no
8 selective process in terms of, you know, allocating
9 the parking.
10          MR. HAVERTY:  Mr. Chairman, can I just jump
11 in there for a second?  This is Paul Haverty from
12 Blatman, Bobrowski, Haverty & Silverstein
13 representing the applicant.
14          That's going to be an issue that will be
15 resolved by the subsidizing agency.  Ultimately
16 they're the ones that make all determinations as it
17 comes to affordability.
18          My guess is that they're going to require a
19 certain percentage of the parking spaces to be
20 available to the affordable units.
21          MR. WISHINSKY:  Randolf, back to you.
22          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you, Mr. Haverty and
23 Neil.  Let's see.  Lark and Neil, you covered a
24 couple of my questions.  I'm just going to go back
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1 to one fairly simple one I think about the bicycle
2 access which, Mr. Roth, you said would be improved.
3          Is that because the -- has the access route
4 to the bicycle parking all along been just down the
5 driveway ramp rather than through some other route?
6          MR. ROTH:  Yes.
7          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  So it's just a less steep
8 route for someone on a bicycle now?
9          MR. ROTH:  Yes.  Actually it does both.  It
10 improves it down the driveway which is much easier
11 and it also will give us an ability to bring it
12 through the building because now the grade of the
13 building -- the entry of the building and the grade
14 of the garage will be pretty closely aligned so you
15 can actually do both.
16          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  How would you do that?
17 We're looking at the plan here.  Would you pass
18 through a stair?
19          MR. WISE:  If I can interrupt a little bit
20 here, I think if you see the pathway through the
21 vestibule, what we've done is redesigned it because
22 the grade changed to allow it and now we have
23 automatic door paddles on both sides of the doors so
24 they'll be able to go right out through the
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1 vestibule rather than using the driveway area.
2          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  It looks like once you get
3 into -- along that curving line, there is perhaps a
4 sloping walk.  Is that what that is representing
5 with the arcing arrow?
6          MR. WISE:  It slopes slightly in the same
7 gradient that the garage ramp does.  It's just
8 separated by the garage with a curb and a railing.
9          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Got it.  Okay.  But it's
10 the same vertical drop whether you go through
11 doors -- or whether you go through the people doors
12 or the car doors?
13          MR. WISE:  Yes, it is.
14          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  All right.  Thank you.
15          If those are all the board questions for
16 now, Maria, could we go to public comment if we have
17 people who are lined up to ask questions or to
18 comment rather?
19          MS. MORELLI:  Yes.  Diane Cercone -- sorry.
20 That is the court reporter for the next case.  So if
21 anyone wishes to speak on this case, if you could
22 raise your hand, there is an icon in the ribbon at
23 the bottom or you could just enter your name in the
24 chat.
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1          Okay.  So far I don't see anyone.  Oh.
2          MR. WISHINSKY:  Diane asked to speak.
3          MS. MORELLI:  Yeah, Diane is the court
4 reporter for 845, not this case.  Okay.  I'm just
5 looking for members of the public who want to speak.
6          Okay.  I think Diane's confused, but I will
7 deal with that.
8          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Maria, you're sure she's
9 not attending as a member of the public?  I know
10 she's a reporter.
11          MS. MORELLI:  Yeah, she's the court
12 reporter.
13          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Only, okay.
14          MS. MORELLI:  What I will do -- I'll just
15 promote her because I just want to make sure there
16 is no confusion.
17          All right.  Okay.  Diane, you've been
18 promoted, yes.
19          MS. CERCONE:  Does that mean entered?  Hi.
20 Good evening.
21          MS. MORELLI:  Hi.
22          MS. CERCONE:  I'm confused.  What's 845?
23 What does that mean?
24          MS. MORELLI:  845 Boylston is the case we
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1 that scheduled you for for court reporting.  That
2 will be starting after this case ends.
3          MS. CERCONE:  Okay.  I've been taking this
4 whole thing down because I didn't -- I thought this
5 was it and I was -- I came on around quarter past.
6 I was completely confused, and I was trying to get
7 your attention.  I don't know.  It's all good.
8          MS. MORELLI:  That's fine.  It's fine.  I
9 had already meant -- I'd already stated to the
10 reporter service what we were doing this evening,
11 but that's okay.
12          MS. CERCONE:  I thought you started
13 earlier.  I had no idea there were two separate
14 hearings.
15          MS. MORELLI:  That's okay, Diane.
16          MS. CERCONE:  Okay.  I'll see you in a
17 little bit then.
18          MS. MORELLI:  All right.  Stay on board,
19 okay?
20          MS. CERCONE:  Good enough.
21          MS. MORELLI:  Okay.  Thanks, Diane.
22          MS. CERCONE:  Okay.  You're welcome.
23          MS. MORELLI:  Does any member of the public
24 wish to speak?
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1          Okay.  I am really not seeing anyone who
2 wishes to speak.  Okay.  We do.  We have Michael
3 Frenette.  I am promoting Michael.
4          If I could just ask for -- Bob, if could
5 you stop the screen share, please.
6          MR. ROTH:  Okay.
7          MS. MORELLI:  Thank you.
8          Okay.  Michael, you raised your hand but
9 I'm trying to promote you to panelist and you're
10 declining, so if you have a question for me, maybe
11 you can just put it in the chat, please.
12          Michael is on his way.
13          Okay.  Michael, you've been promoted.  You
14 can share your video and begin to speak.
15          MR. FRENETTE:  I want to say thank you to
16 the applicant.  This looks like a great proposal and
17 I'm in support of it.  I'm a resident on Eliot
18 Street, 231 Eliot Street, and I'm sticking around
19 for the 845 appointment but wanted to voice my
20 support after everything I've heard.  It's very
21 progressive, great unit mix, and I think it's going
22 to be a great add for the town.  That's all.
23          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you very much.
24          MS. MORELLI:  Okay.  Is there anyone else
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1 who wishes to speak on 40 Centre?
2          I think that's it, Randolf.
3          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Okay.  Maria, can you just
4 give me a little guidance here on our next steps
5 since we're moving along pretty quickly?
6          MS. MORELLI:  Okay.  So at this point,
7 there would be a board discussion so you went
8 through board questions.
9          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Right.
10          MS. MORELLI:  And there would be a board
11 discussion at this point.  Remember, this is for
12 Waiver N.  And also you might wish to discuss the
13 things that you would be memorializing if you were
14 to approve with conditions.
15          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  All right.  Can I ask
16 Lark, are you ready to start here with some comments
17 in the direction Maria is laying out for us?
18          MS. PALERMO:  Sure.
19          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you.
20          MS. PALERMO:  I think that this is a very
21 positive development for this project.  I think that
22 there is a need for adjustment to consumption of
23 fossil fuels and the fact that this building will
24 now have parking that will be EV -- nine EV charging
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1 spaces and the rest will be I guess -- I don't know
2 what the number is but will be convertible to
3 electric charging is all positive.
4          And I would -- I'd be in favor of modifying
5 the special permit with an appropriate condition to
6 allow the developer to make this change to the
7 project.
8          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you.  And I want to
9 get back in a minute to your question, Maria, about
10 sort of the -- about the conditions.  I think that's
11 where -- or the enumeration of the changes.
12          But let me just get to you, Neil, first,
13 before we get into the details of the decision.
14          MR. WISHINSKY:  Yeah.  I'm in agreement
15 with my colleague, Ms. Palermo.  It is the stated
16 policy of the town to start reducing the parking
17 required of developers, and this certainly is within
18 very approximate distance to public transit.
19          I've said this on some other cases I've sat
20 on that are adjacent to similar areas of public
21 transit.  If we can't do it here, we can't do it
22 anywhere in town, and I think it was the intent of
23 town meeting to do it in places like this.
24          I would hope that the conditions would
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1 include the fossil fuel-free, the EV.  There's a
2 statement that the building is going to be solar
3 ready, and the increase in bike parking should be
4 part of it.  Since Mr. Roth has committed to those
5 things, I think we should hold him to it.
6          And to me, the big quid pro quo is the
7 increase in the number of affordable units, which
8 really is to me the sweetener to grant this.
9          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Thank you, Neil.
10          I'm taking notes as we go here, and I'll
11 just say as I get into my comments, I share the
12 favorable outlook of my two colleagues on the change
13 and -- or the set of changes.
14          Just reading back the list -- and Neil gave
15 us most of it -- Maria, it seems to me that the
16 items to enumerate in the decision are change in
17 bicycle parking spaces, change in vehicle parking
18 spaces, change in EV provisions for motor vehicles.
19 If I'm understanding this right, the 100 percent
20 fossil fuel-free design if that is a change from
21 previously or a new commitment?
22          MS. MORELLI:  That is a new voluntary
23 commitment.
24          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Okay.  The percentage of
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1 affordable units and the -- you know, we heard a lot
2 about the elimination of the stacking mechanism.  I
3 wonder whether we could capture the elimination of
4 that in the condition about how the parking gets
5 provided so saying, you know, rather than 25 with
6 stackers, you know, 16 without, which would be nice
7 to see that bound in the decision.
8          Neil, the last one that you mentioned was
9 the sort of solar ready.
10          MR. WISHINSKY:  Solar ready.  I'm looking
11 at the slide.
12          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Right.
13          MR. WISHINSKY:  There was a slide solar
14 ready and then the bike parking.
15          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Right.  Bike parking I had
16 at the top of the list.
17          MR. WISHINSKY:  I'm sorry.  Okay.
18          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  But Maria, is that
19 meaningful enough or detailed enough, to
20 characterize the project as solar ready?  Does that
21 sort of stick well in the decision?
22          MS. MORELLI:  Yes.  I think Mr. Haverty
23 wants to address the board before I answer you.
24          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Mr. Haverty.
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1          MR. HAVERTY:  I'm sorry, no.  I was meaning
2 to click on the chat button (indiscernible) the chat
3 and I clicked on the wrong button.  My bad.
4          MS. MORELLI:  That's okay.
5          Yes.  That's the list I have.  The fossil
6 fuel-free, heating system, the EV charging, the
7 solar ready, so it would just be that there is a
8 place to accommodate solar so they're not exactly
9 installing --
10          MR. WISHINSKY:  Conduits.
11          MS. MORELLI:  Conduits, precisely.  And the
12 affordable units, the bike parking spaces, no
13 stackers, and the reduction in vehicular parking
14 spaces.
15          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Right.  Maria, is the way
16 to move forward on this to have a motion and vote by
17 this board for staff and the (indiscernible) who
18 finalize this in a draft of a written decision?
19          MS. MORELLI:  That's correct.  So after you
20 vote by roll call, you would also authorize the
21 chair of this panel to work with staff to draft the
22 decision in accordance with what you've just
23 outlined.
24          MR. WISHINSKY:  So we're going to delegate
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1 to you, Randolf.
2          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes, I was forewarned
3 about the delegation.
4          All right.  So let me just -- just for the
5 record, let me just give it back to you quickly as a
6 motion that the board authorized me to carry on
7 working with Maria to draft the text relating to
8 these six conditions relating to design changes:
9 One, bike parking; two, vehicle parking; three, EV
10 changes; four, 100 percent fossil fuel-free; five,
11 solar ready; and six, the mix of affordable units.
12          Can I have a second, please?
13          MR. WISHINSKY:  Second.
14          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Second.
15          On the motion, Lark, your vote, please?
16          MS. PALERMO:  I vote in favor of the
17 change.
18          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And Neil?
19          MR. WISHINSKY:  Same, yes.
20          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And I'll vote aye as the
21 chair, and it is unanimous.
22          Maria, anything else to take care of?
23          MS. MORELLI:  No.  I will just note for the
24 public that once this decision is filed with the
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1 town clerk, we will send written notice to abutters
2 within 300 feet, and we will also post the decision
3 on the website.  Okay.  All right.
4          MR. HAVERTY:  Can I just jump in really
5 quickly?
6          MS. MORELLI:  Yes, Mr. Haverty.
7          MR. HAVERTY:  I just wanted to remind the
8 board to close the public hearing; to vote to close
9 the public hearing.
10          MS. MORELLI:  That's correct, yes.  That's
11 right.  I was just going to say we have to close the
12 hearing.
13          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Do we need to vote that,
14 Maria?
15          MS. MORELLI:  Yes, you -- well, you do.  We
16 should have done it before the vote, but that's
17 okay.
18          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Oh, okay.  Well, I'll just
19 thank the applicant and their representatives for
20 coming tonight, and I thank you for the presentation
21 and for the project.  We look forward to seeing it
22 executed in this busy and popular part of town.
23          And I'll move that we close the hearing.
24          Lark?
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1          MS. PALERMO:  I vote in favor of closing
2 the hearing.
3          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  And Neil?
4          MR. WISHINSKY:  Yes.
5          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Yes.  And I vote aye, and
6 we are closed.  Thank you, everybody.
7          MR. ROTH:  Thank you.
8          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Maria, do we get a
9 two-minute break until the next case, something like
10 that?
11          MS. MORELLI:  Yes.  That will give me a
12 chance to promote the next panelists.
13          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  Very good.
14          MS. MORELLI:  And our court reporter Diane
15 can -- yes, thank you, Diane.  Diane will do the
16 transcript for 845 Boylston.
17          MR. MEIKLEJOHN:  I'll be right back.
18          (End of Centre Street matter)
19
20
21
22
23
24
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1                 C E R T I F I C A T E
2          I, Laura E. Antoniotti, Registered
3 Professional Reporter, do hereby certify that the
4 foregoing transcript is a true and accurate
5 transcription to the best of my ability of the audio
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7
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